Public Document Pack

PLANNING COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 20TH JUNE, 2018, 6.00 PM
SHIELD ROOM, CIVIC CENTRE, WEST PADDOCK, LEYLAND PR25
1DH
AGENDA
1

Welcome and Introduction

2

Apologies for Absence

3

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 30 May 2018 of Planning
Committee

4

Declaration of Interest

5

Appeal Decisions

6

Planning Application - 07/2018/2840/FUL - St James CofE
School, Slater Lane, Moss Side

(Pages 5 - 10)

(Pages 11 - 16)

Report of the Director of Planning and Property attached.
7

Planning Application - 07/2018/2675/FUL - 47 Cann
Bridge Street, Higher Walton

(Pages 17 - 24)

Report of the Director of Planning and Property attached.
8

Planning Application - 07/2018/1773/FUL - 143 Liverpool
Road, Longton

(Pages 25 - 34)

Report of the Director of Planning and Property attached.
9

Planning Application - 07/2018/2471/HOH - 51 Green Hey,
Much Hoole

(Pages 35 - 42)

Report of the Director of Planning and Property attached.

Heather McManus
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Planning Committee Councillors
Jon Hesketh (Chair), Rebecca Noblet (Vice-Chair), Renee Blow, Malcolm Donoghue,
Bill Evans, Derek Forrest, Mick Higgins, Ken Jones, Jim Marsh, Jacqui Mort,
Peter Mullineaux, Mike Nathan, Mike Nelson, Caleb Tomlinson and Barrie Yates

Meeting contact Dianne Scambler or email dscambler@southribble.gov.uk

The minutes of this
www.southribble.gov.uk

meeting

will

be

available

on

the

internet

at

Forthcoming Meetings
6.00 pm Wednesday, 18 July 2018 - Shield Room, Civic Centre, West Paddock,
Leyland PR25 1DH
Procedure of Debate at Planning Committee
Whenever a planning application is dealt with by Planning Committee the Council is
keen to allow the local community to participate in the process. The procedure that
will ordinarily be followed is that:







Up to five members of the public who wish to speak against an application will
be allowed to speak. Each will have up to four minutes in which to state their
case.
Up to five members of the public who wish to speak in favour of an application
will then be allowed to speak. Again each will have up to four minutes in which
to state their case.
Borough councillors (not on Planning Committee) will then have the
opportunity to make representations about the application. Each will have up
to four minutes to state their case – whether for or against.
The applicant/agent will then be invited to speak in support of the application.
Ordinarily he/she will have up to four minutes to speak.
The application will be then be discussed by Committee. At this point
members of the public, the applicant and other councillors not on Committee
will not be able to speak further.
Planning Committee will then take a vote on the matter.
No paperwork, plans or photographs will be allowed to be circulated by the
applicant/agent or member of the public at the meeting.

The Chairman of Planning Committee has discretion to vary these rules when
dealing with a particular application if he considers it appropriate. Whenever
members of the public speak (whether in opposition to a proposal or in favour of it)
they should avoid repeating the same points made by other speakers.
Filming/Recording Meetings
The Council will allow any member of the public to take photographs, film, audiorecord and report on any Planning Committee meeting. If anyone is intending to
record any such meeting (or part of such a meeting) then it would be very helpful if
they could give prior notice of their intention to the Council's Democratic Services
Team. Ideally 48 hours' notice should be given.
When exercising the rights to record a Planning Committee meeting a member of the
public must not in any way be disruptive to that meeting. They must not provide an
oral commentary on the meeting whilst it is continuing. If disruption is caused then
the Chairman of the meeting may exclude that person from the rest of the meeting.
Members of the public will not be entitled to stay in the meeting if any confidential
(exempt) items of business are being discussed.

Full details of planning applications, associated documents including related
consultation replies can be found on the Public Access for planning system,
searching
for
the
application
using
the
Simple
Search
box.
http://publicaccess.southribble.gov.uk/online-applications/

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

MINUTES OF

PLANNING COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

Wednesday, 30 May 2018

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillors Jon Hesketh (Chair), Rebecca Noblet (Vice-Chair),
Bill Evans, Derek Forrest, Mick Higgins, Jim Marsh,
Jacqui Mort, Mike Nathan, Mike Nelson, Caleb Tomlinson and
Barrie Yates

OFFICERS:

Jonathan Noad (Director of Planning and Property), Dave
Whelan (Legal Services Manager/Interim Monitoring Officer),
Catherine Lewis (Interim Assistant Planning Manager
(Development Management)), Chris Sowerby (Interim Assistant
Planning Manager (Development Management)), Janice Crook
(Planning Officer) and Dianne Scambler (Governance and
Member Services Team Leader)

OTHER MEMBERS
AND OFFICERS:

Councillor Clifford Hughes MBE (Cabinet Member (Strategic
Planning, Housing and Economic Growth)), Councillor Colin
Clark, Councillor Colin Coulton, Councillor Susan Jones JP,
Councillor Phil Smith and Councillor Graham Walton

PUBLIC:

0

1

Welcome and Introduction
The Chair, Councillor Jon Hesketh, welcomed Councillors Mick Higgins, Jacqui Mort
and Peter Mulineaux who had been appointed to the Committee for 2018/19, the
Chair also welcomed the members of the public to the meeting; introduced the
committee and explained the proceedings and role of its members.

2

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Renee Blow, Ken Jones and
Mal Donoghue.

3

Declaration of Interest
The following interests were declared:
Councillor Jon Hesketh – Item 2: Personal Interest
Councillor Barrie Yates – Item 13: Non-pecuniary Interest
Although not a Member of Committee, Councillor Colin Clark was in attendance at
the meeting and declared a personal interest in Item 1- (Councillor Clark lived next
door to the proposed development and had objected to the planning application.

Planning Committee Wednesday 30 May 2018

Page 5

2

4

Minutes of the Last Meeting
RESOLVED (Unanimously):
That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 April 2018 be approved as a correct
record for signing by the Chair.

5

Appeal Decisions
The Director of Planning and Property reported that Persimmon Homes had
appealed the decision of Land off Brindle Road, Bamber Bridge development,
against the refusal of planning permission. The Council had already received an
appeal for this decision from Bellway Homes.
Despite a request by the Council to hold the two hearings on the same day, the
Planning Inspectorate had confirmed that they would hold two separate planning
hearings.

6

Planning Application - 07/2018/1838/FUL - 72 Marsh Lane, Longton
Councillor Colin Clark left the meeting.
Speakers: Councillor Colin Coulton (on behalf of Councillor Colin Clarke and his
wife), the Director of Planning and Property (read out a letter of objection that had
been submitted by Councillor Colin Clark).
Address:

72 Marsh Lane, Longton, Preston,
Lancashire PR4 5ZL

Applicant:

Mr Andrew McKerney

Agent:

Ms Suzi Darbyshire, 184/186 Station Road,
Bamber Bridge, Preston, Lancashire
PR5 6SE

Development:

Erection of 2no agricultural stores (steel shipping
containers) to accommodate storage of equipment
and to house sheep/feed and the formation of silo
area for grass

RESOLVED (Unanimously):
That the application be deferred to allow for further dialogue to take place with the
applicant regarding the siting of the buildings and information on the intended use of
the land and buildings for the keeping of sheep.
7

Planning Application - 07/2018/1646/FUL - Lane Ends Farm, Liverpool
Road, Much Hoole
Councillor Jon Hesketh left the meeting and the Vice Chair, Councillor Rebecca
Noblet took the Chair for this item.

Planning Committee Wednesday 30 May 2018

Page 6

3

Address:

Lane Ends Farm, Liverpool Road, Much Hoole,
Preston, Lancashire PR4 5JT

Applicant:

WTC Farms

Agent:

Roger Treacher, Farriers Farm, Grange Lane,
Hutton, Preston PR4 5JH

Development:

Erection of open sided agricultural building to
accommodate a manure store

RESOLVED (Unanimously):
That the application be approved with conditions.
Councillor Jon Hesketh returned to the meeting and took the Chair.
8

Planning Application - 07/2018/0334/OUT - Land South of 89 Langdale
Road, Leyland
Address:

Land South of 89 Langdale Road, Leyland,
Lancashire

Applicant:

The Trustees of Worden Estate

Agent:

Mr Richard Percy, Broadsword House, 2
Stonecrop, North Quarry Business Park, Appley
Bridge, Wigan WN6 9DL

Development:

Outline application for a residential development
(14 dwellings) with associated access road, earth
bund and the erection of 2.5m high boundary
fence to the eastern side of the site

RESOLVED: (Yes: 9, No: 2)
That members be minded to approve the application with the decision being
delegated to the Director of Planning and Property in consultation with the Chair and
Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee upon the successful completion of a Section
106 Agreement to secure commuted sums for affordable housing, off-site public
open space and for the management and maintenance of on-site public open space
and the adjacent woodland.
9

Planning Application - 07/2018/1676/FUL - Oakwell Auto Electrical Ltd, 24
Hastings Road, Leyland
Speaker: Councillor Susan Jones (Ward Councillor)
Address:

Oakwell Auto Electrical Ltd, 24 Hastings Road,
Leyland, Preston, Lancashire PR25 3SP

Applicant:

Oakwell Auto Electrical Ltd.

Planning Committee Wednesday 30 May 2018

Page 7

4

Agent:

Mr Bob Margerison, 213 Preston Road, Whittle-leWoods, Chorley PR6 7PS

Development:

Single storey side extension

RESOLVED: (Unanimously)
That members be minded to approved the application with the decision being
delegated to the Director of Planning and Property in consultation with the Chairman
and Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee on the completion of a 28 days
period from the serving of the Certificate of Ownership on the owners of the land to
which part of this application relates.
10

Planning Application - 07/2018/1692/VAR - Oakwell Auto Electrical Ltd, 24
Hastings Road, Leyland
Speaker: Councillor Susan Jones (Ward Councillor)
Address:

Oakwell Auto Electrical Ltd, 24 Hastings Road,
Leyland, Preston, Lancashire PR25 3SP

Applicant:

Oakwell Auto Electrical Ltd.

Agent:

Mr Bob Margerison, 213 Preston Road, Whittle-leWoods, Chorley PR6 7PS

Development:

Application for the variation of condition 2
(Approved plans) of planning permission
07/2016/0117/FUL

RESOLVED: (Unanimously)
That members be minded to approved the application with the decision being
delegated to the Director of Planning and Property in consultation with the Chairman
and Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee on the completion of a 28 days
period from the serving of the Certificate of Ownership on the owners of the land to
which part of this application relates.
11

Planning Application - 07/2018/1821/FUL - 25 Turpin Green Lane, Leyland
Speakers: 3 objectors, Councillor Susan Jones (Ward Councillor) and Mr S Porter
(Applicant).
Address:

25 Turpin Green Lane, Leyland, Preston,
Lancashire PR25 3HA

Applicant:

Mr S Porter

Agent:

Mr Matthew Cross, 182 Rawlinson Lane, Heath
Charnock, Chorley PR7 4DJ

Planning Committee Wednesday 30 May 2018

Page 8

5

Development:

Two storey rear extension, sub division of ground
floor shop into 2 No. A1 units together with the
provision of an additional flat at first floor

RESOLVED (Unanimously):
That the application be refused for the following reasons:

12

1.

The proposed two storey rear extension would have a detrimental impact on
the residential amenity of the adjacent residential dwelling by virtue of its
massing, proximity, height, scale and window placement, leading to an
overbearing effect and loss of privacy, contrary to Policy G17 in the South
Ribble Local Plan; and

2.

The application fails to provide off-street car parking, contrary to Policies F1,
G17 and Appendix 4 of the South Ribble Local Plan.

Planning Application - 07/2018/1023/FUL - 25 Golden Hill Lane, Leyland
Speakers: Councillor Susan Jones (Ward Councillor)
Address:

25 Golden Hill Lane, Leyland, Lancashire PR25
3NP

Applicant:

Phongsri Williams

Agent:

None

Development:

Change of use from hairdresser to massage shop

RESOLVED (Yes: 9, No 2):
That the application be refused because the proposal would see the loss of an
existing retail premises, and subsequent reduction of retail units to an unacceptable
level within Leyland Town Centre. It is therefore contrary to Policy E3 (Leyland Town
Centre) of the South Ribble Local Plan 2012-2026 and South Ribble Retail Position
Statement (Nov 2017).
13

Planning Application - 07/2018/1850/FUL - Prospect Hill Training Centre,
Old Brown Lane, Walton-Le-Dale
Speakers: 1 Objector and Mr S Ormisher (Applicant)
Address:

Prospect Hill Training Centre, Old Brown Lane
Walton-Le-Dale, Preston, Lancashire PR5 6ZA

Applicant:

Mr Ormisher

Agent:

P Wilson & Company LLP, Burlington House
10-11 Ribblesdale Place, Preston PR1 3NA

Development:

Retrospective application for change of use from a
training course (Class D1), to a storage and

Planning Committee Wednesday 30 May 2018

Page 9

6

distribution use in connection with a drain
cleaning/repair business (Class B8), and retention
of two 5m high poles to accommodate CCTV
cameras, security fencing and access gate
RESOLVED (Yes: 7, Abstain: 1, No: 4):
That the application be refused for the following reasons:
1.

The proposed industrial use would have a serious urbanising effect that would
conflict with the purposes of including land within the Green Belt contrary to
the Policy G1 of the South Ribble Local Plan; and

2.

The proposal would harm the openness of the Green Belt and would
constitute inappropriate development for the purposes of the National
Planning Policy Framework and Policy G1 of the South Ribble Local Plan.

Chair

Planning Committee Wednesday 30 May 2018

Date

Page 10

Agenda Item 6
Application Number

07/2018/2840/FUL

Address

St James Church Of England School
Slater Lane
Moss Side
Leyland
Lancashire
PR25 1TL

Applicant

Mrs L Taylor-Bell - Headteacher

Agent
Mr Jeff Heskine
12 The Spinney
Lancaster
LA1 4JQ

Development

Formation of Multi Use Games Area on school
field to rear and erection of 3m high boundary
fencing

Officer Recommendation
Officer Name

Approval with Conditions
Mr Chris Sowerby

Date application valid
Target Determination Date
Extension of Time

11.05.2018
06.07.2018
N/A

Page 11

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 As an Officer of the Planning Department is a Governor at the School to which the
application relates the application has been brought before the Planning Committee for
determination.
2. REPORT SUMMARY
2.1 The application relates to St. James Church of England School located on the south side
of Slater Lane in Leyland. School buildings and areas of hardstanding are generally located
to the front of the site with the school playing field towards the rear of the site. The
application site is within an area of land designated as Green Infrastructure (Policy G7) in the
South Ribble Local Plan.
2.2 The application seeks planning permission for the formation of a multi-use games area
enclosed by 3m high fencing. The proposed games area would be surfaced in permeable
Tarmacadam and measure 25m (length) x 15m (width). No floodlights or lighting columns
are proposed. The agent has stated within supporting information submitted with the
planning application that the games area would be for the sole use of the school.
2.3 Policy G7 encourages the ‘multi-use’ of Green Infrastructure spaces for leisure and
recreational purposes. As the proposed development does not result in the loss of Green
Infrastructure provision but actually would improve the recreational facilities present for pupils
the proposed development accords with the requirements of Policy G7.
2.4 Existing buildings would partially screen the site from Slater Lane with only distant views
of the games area to be present across the school playground. A minimum distance of 19m
would be present from the proposed multi-use games area to the nearest residential property
at 107 St James Gardens. Given the area of the school playing field on which the games
area is to be sited is already actively used by pupils and the facility would be for the sole use
of the school there is considered to be no undue loss of amenity as a result of the use
proposal.
2.5 There are no highway safety or ecological implications associated with the proposal.
2.6 The application complies with Policy 17 the Core Strategy together with Policies G7 and
G17 of the South Ribble Local Plan. The application is therefore recommended for approval
subject to the imposition of conditions.
3. APPLICATION SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA
3.1 The application relates to St. James Church of England School located on the south side
of Slater Lane in Leyland. School buildings and areas of hardstanding are generally located
to the front of the site with the school playing field towards the rear of the site.
3.2 The school playing field is bounded to the west by residential properties on St. James
Gardens and to the east by residential properties on The Glebe. A series of mature trees,
which are not subject to a Tree Preservation Order, are present along the rear boundary of
the site. The application site is located slightly off-centre (to the west) within the school
playing field.
3.3 The application site is within an area of land designated as Green Infrastructure (Policy
G7) in the South Ribble Local Plan.
4. SITE HISTORY
4.1 Numerous planning applications have been submitted over the years relating to the main
school building. There are however no previous applications relating to development on the
school playing pitch.

Page 12

5. PROPOSAL
5.1 The application seeks planning permission for the formation of a multi-use games area
enclosed by 3m high fencing. The proposed games area would be surfaced in permeable
Tarmacadam and measure 25m (length) x 15m (width).
5.2 The proposed games area would be set 65m back from the site frontage with a minimum
of 19m present to the western site boundary with 107 St James Gardens. A distance of 45m
would be present to the rear boundary with a distance of 80m to the eastern boundary.
5.3 No floodlights or lighting columns are proposed.
5.4 The agent has stated within supporting information submitted with the planning
application that the games area would be for the sole use of the school.
6. REPRESENTATIONS
6.1 As of the 4th June one letter of representation has been received. The letter offers a
neutral opinion of the proposal but seeks confirmation that the games area would only be
used by the school and only during normal school hours.
7. CONSULTATION REPLIES
Environmental Health have raised no objections to the proposal subject to the imposition of
conditions relating to hours of construction, hours of use, the installation of rubber strips and
washers on the fencing and restriction on floodlights. A recommended condition relating to
restricting the hours of deliveries does not meet the test for conditions as the scheduling of
delivery vehicles is unlikely to be in direct control of the applicant.
Ecology have raised no objections to the proposal confirming that the school playing field is
highly likely to be of low ecological value and the absence of any proposed floodlighting
means that there should be no ecological issues.
The Local Authority’s Arboriculturist has raised no objections to the development.
8. MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
Policy Considerations
8.1 i) NPPF
8.1.1 The NPPF promotes a presumption in favour of sustainable development and supports
opportunities for sport and recreation.
8.2 ii) Core Strategy Policy Considerations
8.2.1 Policy 17 of the Core Strategy, which is entitled ‘Design of New Buildings’ but applies
more broadly to any form of built development, requires an assessment to be made of the
design of new structures to ensure that they are in character with the surroundings and will
not adversely affect neighbours.
8.2.2 Policy 24 of the Core Strategy, which is entitled ‘Sport and Recreation’, promotes
access to sport and recreation facilities.
8.3 iii) South Ribble Local Plan (2012-2026)
8.3.1 Within the Local Plan the application site is allocated under Policy G7 as Green
Infrastructure. Policy G7 encourages the ‘multi-use’ of Green Infrastructure spaces for
leisure and recreational purposes. As the proposed development does not result in the loss
of Green Infrastructure provision but actually would improve the recreational facilities present
for pupils the proposed development accords with the requirements of Policy G7.

Page 13

8.4 Character and Design
8.4.1 Policy 17 of the Core Strategy and Policy G17 of the Local Plan, sets out design criteria
for new development and requires development to be well related to neighbouring buildings
and the locality.
8.4.2 Existing buildings would partially screen the site from Slater Lane with only distant
views of the games area to be present across the school playground. There are no other
public vantage points where the proposed games area and perimeter fencing could be
viewed. The visual impact the proposed development would have on the character and
appearance of the area is therefore negligible with no external lighting proposed. The
proposed development is therefore considered to comply with Policy G17 Criterion a),
relating to the character and appearance of the area and Core Strategy Policy 17.
8.5 Relationship To Neighbours
8.5.1 A minimum distance of 19m would be present from the proposed multi-use games area
to the nearest residential property at 107 St James Gardens. Given the area of the school
playing field on which the games area is to be sited is already actively used by pupils and the
facility would be for the sole use of the school there is considered to be no undue loss of
amenity as a result of the use proposal. Conditions can be imposed to safeguard amenity
including restricting the use solely for the school and the hours that construction of the facility
is permitted.
8.6 Highway Issues
8.6.1 As the proposed facility would solely be used in connection with the existing use of the
site as a primary school the games area would not be a traffic generator. Consequently the
proposed development will not impact on highway safety or highway capacity.
8.7 Tree Issues / Wildlife
8.7.1 The proposed games area would be sited 45m from the rear boundary along which a
belt of mature trees are present. The Local Authority’s Arboriculturist has raised no
objections to the proposed development which will not have an adverse on any tree.
8.7.2 With the site comprising of mown grass the Council’s Ecology advisors have confirmed
that the school playing field is highly likely to be of low ecological value and the absence of
any proposed floodlighting means that there should be no ecological issues.
8.8 CONCLUSION
8.8.1 The proposed formation of a multi-use games area enclosed by 3m high fencing at St
James Church of England School, by virtue of the distance to Slater Lane and intervening
buildings, will not have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area or
the amenities of nearby properties. Environmental Health have raised no objections to the
proposal subject to the imposition of conditions detailed within this report. There are no
highway safety or ecological implications associated with the proposal.
8.8.2 The application complies with Policy 17 the Core Strategy together with Policies G7
and G17 of the South Ribble Local Plan. The application is therefore recommended for
approval subject to the imposition of conditions.
RECOMMENDATION:
Approval with Conditions.
RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS:
1.

That the development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.

Page 14

REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
2.

No work shall be commenced until satisfactory details of the colour of the permeable
tarmacadam surfacing treatment to be used have been submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details
REASON: To ensure the satisfactory detailed appearance of the development in
accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Policy G17 in
the South Ribble Local Plan.

3.

The use of the development hereby approved shall be restricted to the hours of
09:00am to 17:00pm Monday to Friday and the premises shall not be used at any
time on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank/Public Holidays or School Holidays.
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of adjoining residents and to accord with
Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy

4.

That the development hereby approved shall not be open for community / public use.
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of adjoining residents and to accord with
Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy

5.

During the site preparation and construction of the development hereby approved, no
machinery shall be operated; no process shall be carried out and no deliveries taken
at or dispatched from the site outside the following times:
0800 hrs to 1800 hrs Monday to Friday
0800 hrs to 1300 hrs Saturday
No activities shall take place on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.
REASON: To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents particularly with
regard to the effects of noise in accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire
Core Strategy.

6.

The fence surrounding the MUGA hereby approved shall be fitted with heavy duty
rubber strips and rubber washers between each connection to prevent vibration when
struck with balls. The fence and rubber strips/washers shall thereafter be maintained.
REASON: To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents in accordance with
Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy.

7.

No external floodlighting or security lights shall be installed without first obtaining
written permission from the Local Planning Authority.
REASON: To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents in accordance with
Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy.

8.

The development, hereby permitted, shall be carried out in accordance with the
submitted approved plans ref 'SJPS/MUGA/JH/1 Rev A' (Proposed Site Plan),
'SJPS/MUGA/JH/2' (Proposed Multi Use Games Area)

Page 15

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development in accordance with
Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Policy G1 of the South Ribble
Local Plan (2012-2026).

RELEVANT POLICY
17

Design of New Buildings (Core Strategy Policy)

POLG7

Green Infrastructure Existing Provision

POLG17

Design Criteria for New Development

Note:

Page 16

Agenda Item 7
Application Number

07/2018/2675/FUL

Address

47 Cann Bridge Street
Higher Walton
Preston
Lancashire
PR5 4DJ

Applicant

Mr Haydn Williams

Development

Change of use from Class A3 (Cafe) to Class A4
(Public House) and minor alterations

Officer Recommendation
Officer Name

Approval with Conditions
Mrs Debbie Roberts

Date application valid
Target Determination Date
Extension of Time

26.04.2018
21.06.2018
N/A

1. REPORT SUMMARY
1.1 The application refers to an end of terraced, traditional property formerly used as a café,
and located at the corner of Cann Bridge Street, Higher Walton Road and Kittlingbourne
Brow; a mixed use area designated under Policy E5 (Local Centres) of the South Ribble
Local Plan.
1.2 The application proposes change of use of the ground floor from former café (Class A3)
to micro pub and ‘bottle shop’ (Class A4).

Page 17

1.3 Environmental Health have raised no objections to the proposal subject to the imposition
of conditions detailed in this report to safeguard neighbour amenity.
1.4 Lancashire County Council Highways have no objections and is of the opinion that the
proposed dwelling will offer negligible impact on highway safety or capacity
1.5 This proposal will be in keeping with the nature of the area and existing development,
and is therefore considered to be in accordance with all relevant policies of the South Ribble
Local Plan, Central Lancashire Core Strategy and National Planning Policy Framework. This
proposal is recommended for approval subject to the imposition of conditions.
2. APPLICATION SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA
2.1 The application refers to an end of terraced, traditional property formerly used as a café,
and located at the corner of Cann Bridge Street, Higher Walton Road and Kittlingbourne
Brow; a mixed use area designated under Policy E5 (Local Centres) of the South Ribble
Local Plan.
2.2 Adjacent in the west are a café, retail unit and two hot food takeaways. The rest of the
terrace appears to be in residential use. Two first floor flats are present within the application
site, and above commercial premises on the terrace but a check of Council Tax records
shows that none are currently occupied.
2.3 Facing across Kittlingbourne Brow in the east are retail units with residential properties
running away to the south, and immediately to the rear is an alleyway beyond which are
Higher Walton Glass and Coupe’s Foundry. Facing across Cann Bridge Street are a number
of commercial units with one residential property.
3. SITE HISTORY
3.1 There are 3 planning applications on the history of this site:
 07/1986/0467 – change of use of shop to cafe/restaurant (ground floor). Approved Nov
1986
 07/1988/0816 - change of use of vacant shop to ground floor cafe and shop and first floor
museum and craft centre. Approved Dec 1988
 07/1995/0597 - Conversion of first floor showroom (Class A1) to form two self-contained
flats (Class C3). Approved October 1995
4. PROPOSAL
4.1 The application proposes change of use of the ground floor from former café (Class A3)
to micro pub and ‘bottle shop’ (Class A4).
4.2 The 83m² pub and shop would be combined into one room, with storage and sanitary
facilities to the rear. Access would be from both Cann Bridge Street (front) and Kittlingbourne
Brow (side), but external alterations other than small security lights above the entrance doors
(as required by Police), and a refrigeration vent on the rear elevation are not proposed.
4.3 The pub would sell predominantly cask ales, wines and spirits. Bar snacks would be
available but cooked food is not proposed. The applicant states that there would be no
gaming machines, amplified music would be at an ambient level and there would be only
occasional hosting of un-amplified, folk groups – the ethos of the business being good beer
and conversation for up to 70 people. Conditions to restrict noise emissions are
recommended
4.4 The ‘bottle shop’ would be an ancillary retail function offering world ales for on and off
site consumption.

Page 18

4.5 Opening hours are proposed as 2pm – 11pm Weds & Thursday, 12pm – 11pm Friday,
weekends and bank holidays. As the applicant wishes to review the situation as the business
progresses, it seems sensible to allow opening from 12pm – 11pm each day rather than
impose a restriction which may need adjusting at a later date; proposed times are shorter
than those of adjacent licensed premises. Two part time employees are suggested
4.6 As with most of the retail premises in the vicinity there are limited areas for servicing and
parking. There is however an area to the rear currently used for waste storage, a small layby
available for parking to the front, and pay and display parking is available on Cann Bridge
Street. The nature of the use is such that driving would also be actively discouraged
4.7 An advertisement scheme would be addressed if permission for change is granted.
Future use of the pavement as a cordoned smoking area has also been mentioned in the
applicants statement, but as this would require the permission of, and a pavement licence
from Lancashire County Council, this point is not relevant at this time.
5. REPRESENTATIONS
5.1 A site notice has been posted and eighteen neighbouring properties have been consulted
but representation has only been made by three residents. Comments in objection are
summarised as:
 ‘There are already 2 public houses in Higher Walton and Spar already sells alcohol’
 Proposal will exacerbate parking problems in the area
 Potential for anti-social behaviour, litter and noise pollution
 Property would be better in alternative use
 Issues with regards to live music
5.2 Officer comment: competition and proliferation of businesses in one area are not material
planning considerations, and it is considered that parking problems which already exist,
would be found in this area regardless of proposed or reversion to former use. If anything,
problems might be reduced as clients would be discouraged from driving. Deliveries etc.
would be necessary regardless of business. Conditions as suggested by Environmental
Health are sufficient to control noise emissions from within the pub
6. CONSULTATION REPLIES
South Ribble Environmental Health notes that the applicants statement that live and
recorded music would be provided is contrary to the noise impact assessment. As such EH
are mindful to suggest further noise assessment prior to a decision being made. To limit
costs to the applicant however, he considers that the sensible use of conditions would be
suitable control in lieu of additional testing. These refer to ‘no amplified live music’, recorded
music being played via a sound limiting device and restrictions on opening times, waste
removal/collection, refrigeration and use of external space. The applicant has agreed to
these conditions
Lancashire County Council Highways have no objections and is of the opinion that the
proposed dwelling will offer negligible impact on highway safety or capacity. They do note
that the application indicates a bench to the front of the business which would be located on
the adopted highway, and for which a separate LCC licence would be required.
Lancashire Constabulary offer general advice with regards to security
7. MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
7.1 Site Allocation
7.1.1 The site sits within Higher Walton Local Centre as allocated by Local Plan Policy E5.
Within the Local Centre A1 (Retail) uses will be protected and enhanced wherever possible

Page 19

in order to achieve a minimum of 60%. This is to maintain the vitality and viability of the
centre and to prevent the over proliferation of non-retail uses at the expense of the retail
offer, although it is important that a presence is retained within such areas to maintain footfall
and by default the local economy. For this reason applications for other local centre uses
including A2 (Financial and Professional Services), A3 (Cafés and Restaurants) and A4
(Drinking Establishments), and B1 (Offices) may be appropriate where it does not undermine
the sustainability of the shopping area.
7.1.2 The South Ribble Retail Position Statement (Nov 17) seeks to maintain a minimum of
60% of A1 retail uses in all identified town, district and local centres. Higher Walton local
centre comprises of 20 units. 22% are in A1 use, and 35% vacant units have the potential to
be A1. As this proposal does not involve loss of a retail unit, and having regard to this
relatively high, potential 57% A1 use, it is considered that the proposed change of use would
be of benefit, rather than detrimental to the health of the local centre and its economy.
7.2 Economic Standpoint
7.2.1 National Planning Policy Framework - The overarching theme of the NPPF is one of
presumption in favour of sustainable development; this includes building a strong and
competitive economy. It states that local planning authorities should ‘support existing
business sectors to ‘meet the development needs of business in an economy fit for the 21st
century’ (Para:20), and ‘identify and plan for new and emerging sectors in the area offering
flexibility to accommodate needs not anticipated in the plan and to allow rapid response to
changes in economic circumstances’ (Para :21). Para 23 of the framework notes also that
planning should ‘promote competitive town centres that offer customer choice and a diverse
retail offer, reflecting the individuality of town centres’ and that we should ‘ensure that
markets remain attractive and competitive’.
7.2.2 The application premises sit within an established local centre, and the proposal would
support rather than impact upon local business by attracting people into the area. The micropub market is new and innovative, and although not specifically considered within the
Development Plan itself, removes a vacant premises whilst offering a level of positive
diversification to the local centre as a whole
7.2.3 Core Strategy Policy 12 (Culture & Entertainment Facilities) seeks to ‘promote
cultural and entertainment facilities within key centres’ which ‘are important in attracting
visitors and investment to the area’. Para 9.29 of this policy states that ‘healthy sustainable
communities should have ample cultural and leisure opportunities for all’ and whilst there are
pubs in the vicinity, these tend to be more mainstream in nature; the micro-pub ethos
provides an alternative to such facilities.
7.3 Design / Highways
7.3.1 Local Plan Policy G17 (Design) supports development where design and siting are of
a high quality, car parking and servicing provision are acceptable and there is no impact
upon surrounding land use. Although the proposal does not accord to adopted parking
standards as set down in Policy F1 (Parking Standards) of the same document, public and
on road parking facilities are readily available, and the proposal site is within a relatively short
walk of Preston Town Centre and on a well-served bus route. Taking into account this
sustainable location and the Highways Authority comments (above) this proposal appears to
accord well to the sentiments of the above.
7.4 Neighbouring properties
7.4.1 The closest residential properties are 21m west within the same terrace, facing across
Cann Bridge Street at 23m and in the east at a distance of 12m. Loss of privacy or

Page 20

overlooking to neighbouring properties is not expected to be any different than the current
situation.
7.2.2 Noise has been assessed separately by Noise Impact Assessment (Martec Env
Consultants 8245:10.4.18). Having regard to Environmental Health’s comments, and subject
to mitigation identified by the report and imposed conditions, impact resulting from excessive
noise is considered acceptable
7.4.3 Proposed opening times for the premises are relatively restricted, and as a small
property accommodating only limited client numbers, with little live or amplified music it is not
anticipated that the site will impact detrimentally in terms of noise.
7.5 Flood Risk
7.5.1 The application site sits within flood zones 2 and 3 and as such development is
categorised as ‘more vulnerable’. There is a history of localised flooding but not at this
property, and although there is a risk of flooding from the River Darwen, mitigation identified
by Chapter 6 of the report should prove adequate. Emergency evacuation of the property
would be relatively straightforward, and refuge is available upstairs should the worse happen
and evacuation is not possible.
8. CONCLUSION
8.1 This proposal will be in keeping with the nature of the area and existing development,
and is therefore considered to be in accordance with all relevant policies of the South Ribble
Local Plan, Central Lancashire Core Strategy and National Planning Policy Framework. This
proposal is recommended for approval subject to the imposition of conditions.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval with Conditions.
RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS:
1.

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this permission.
REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

2.

The development, hereby permitted, shall be carried out in accordance with the
submitted approved plans Dwg Proposed floor plan, elevations, licensing plan: March
18, Sound Insulation Report (Martec Environmental: 8245 10.4.18), Flood Risk
Assessment (UK Flood Risk QFRA986/25.4.18), JCC Cellar Cooler specifications
and Supporting/Noise Impact Statement.
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
development

3.

Waste collections shall not occur outside the hours of 07.00 hrs to 21.00 hrs Monday
to Friday
09.00 hrs to 1300 hrs Saturday
No activities shall take place on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.
REASON: To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents particularly with
regard to the effects of noise in accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire
Core Strategy

Page 21

4.

The venue shall only be open to visiting members of the public during the hours of
12am - 11pm Monday to Sunday
REASONL in the interest of the amenity of nearby residents in accordance with Policy
17 of the South Ribble Local Plan

5.

No external seating, lighting or heating shall be provided unless with the prior written
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.
REASON: To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents particularly with
regard to the effects of noise in accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire
Core Strategy and Local Plan Policy G17

6.

Waste, including empty bottles shall not be removed from within the premises (taken
outside) between the hours of 10pm and 8am on any day.
REASON: To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents particularly with
regard to the effects of noise in accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire
Core Strate

7.

Any construction works associated with the development shall not take place except
between the hours of: 0800 hrs to 1800 hrs Monday to Friday and 0800 hrs to 1300
hrs Saturday
No construction works shall take place on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority
REASON: To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents particularly with
regard to the effects of noise in accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire
Core Strategy

8.

No deliveries shall be taken at or dispatched from the site outside the following times:
07.30 hrs to 22.00 hrs Monday to Friday
09.00 hrs to 1300 hrs Saturday
No activities shall take place on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.
REASON: To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents particularly with
regard to the effects of noise in accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire
Core Strategy

9.

There shall be no amplified, live music played at the venue unless with the written
agreement of the Local Planning Authority
REASON: In the interest of the amenity and to safe guard the living conditions of the
nearby residents in accordance with Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core
Strategy and G17 of the South Ribble Local Plan

10.

Prior to installation of any extraction, filters and external ventilation stacks, details
(including height of stacks, fixings and noise levels to be produced) shall be
submitted for written approval to the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme
shall be fully implemented prior to first use of the site and shall thereafter be retained
and maintained in efficient working order for the duration of the approved use.
REASON: To ensure prior to development that extraction equipment is fit for
purposes, in the interests of the amenity and to safe guard the living conditions of the
nearby residents in accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core
Strategy.

11.

All recorded music shall be played via a sound limiting device. Details of the device
shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval prior to first use of the
building hereby approved, and must include an anti-tampering control. The limiter
shall be set to ensure that the resulting sound cannot be heard at neighbouring
properties. On receipt of any complaints by the local authority the sound limiter shall
be set in conjunction with the Environmental Health Section of the Council.

Page 22

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the nearby residents in accordance with
Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and the NPPF
12.

Prior to first use of the building as hereby approved, the construction details provided
within section 6.1 of the submitted noise report 'Sound Insulation Report' dated 10th
April 2018 by Martec Environmental Consultants Ltd shall be installed and a retest
undertaken to ensure that a minimum of 60dB DnT,w is achieved.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the nearby residents in accordance with
Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and the NPPF.

RELEVANT POLICY
POLE5

Local Centres

100
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
12

Culture and Entertainment Facilities (Core Strategy Policy)

POLG17

Design Criteria for New Development

POLF1Car Parking
Note:
Other application Informative
1.
Attention is drawn to the condition(s) attached to this planning permission. In order to
discharge these conditions an Application for Approval of Details Reserved by Condition form
must be submitted, together with details required by each condition imposed. The fee for
such an application is £116. The forms can be found on South Ribble Borough Council's
website www.southribble.gov.uk
2.
Highways Note: Please note that this consent does not give permission for installation
of the bench mentioned in Paragraph 2(m) of the Supporting Statement and Noise Impact
Statement. Any seating in the adopted highway would need to comply with the requirements
of a Section 115 Licence (1980 Highways Act) which should be obtained separately from
Lancashire County Council.
3.
Environmental Health Note: It is recommended that an octave sound limiter is used
since this utilises better control and quality of sound. Less effective systems will simply cut
the music once a certain volume has been reached.
4.
Lancashire Constabulary Note: The applicant should ensure that Secured by Design
principles are incorporated into the development in line with the Central Lancashire Core
Strategy. This should include, but is not limited to:
1. Installation of laminated glazing in windows/doors
2. The bar should be high and wide to deter assault and staff intimidation
3. Intruder alarms should be monitored via Alarm Receiving Centre - a mixture of PIR
motion sensors, widnow and door contacts is recomended.
4. Intruder alarms should cover all available points of access. Recording equipment
must be stored in a locked room and stored securely for 30 days before being destroyed if
not required

Page 23

5. Doors and windows should be security rated to PAS 24 (2016) equivalent standard
such as LPS 1175. Opening windows should be fitted with restrictors
5.
Advertisement: Please contact the Local Planning Authority on 01772 625400 for
further advice with regards to external advertisement

Page 24

Agenda Item 8
Application Number

07/2018/1773/FUL

Address

143 Liverpool Road
Longton
Preston
Lancashire
PR4 5AB

Applicant

Mr Christopher Buckley

Development

Change of use from Class A1 (Office Licence) to
Class A4 (Drinking Establishment)

Officer Recommendation
Officer Name

Approval with Conditions
Mr Mike Davies

Date application valid
Target Determination Date
Extension of Time

24.04.2018
19.06.2018
21.06.2018

1. REPORT SUMMARY
1.1

The proposal involves the change of use of a former off license (Class A1) on the
main road through Longton into a drinking establishment (Class A4).

1.2

Given the location of the site on a main road and that it is situated opposite an
existing public house it is considered an appropriate use subject to the imposition of
conditions to protect the amenities of nearby residents.

2. APPLICATION SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA

Page 25

2.1

The site is an end of terrace property situated on the corner of Liverpool Road and
Grove Avenue. The property consists of a vacant ground floor unit (Class A1) with a
hairdressers above at first floor level. The adjoining property is occupied by a firm of
solicitors (Class A2). Directly across Liverpool Road facing the premises is the Red
Lion public house. Further along the parade in close proximity to the site at 151 and
153 are located two hot food takeaways which also operate late into the evening.

2.2

To the rear is a yard area, but this is not in the ownership of the ground floor unit, who
do not have access to this. At the side of the premises on Grove Avenue is a private
forecourt which is used for car parking. Across Grove Avenue from the site is a
barbers shop and gift shop. Further down Grove Avenue at its junction with Brook
Hey and Tuson Croft are situated a pair of semi-detached dwellings which are angled
onto the corner rather than facing directly onto Grove Avenue.

2.3

The site is allocated within B1 Built up Area on the Local Plan Policies Map and does
not form part of a designated centre, yet this area of Liverpool Road is predominantly
characterised by commercial uses, with some residential interspersed in between.

3. SITE HISTORY
3.1

The property was originally a residential dwelling, which was converted into a ground
floor retail use in 1988 with the benefit of planning permission.

3.2

Planning permission was refused in 1989, for a two storey rear extension to the
premises, new shopfront and hard landscaping.

3.3

Last year a prior notification application was received to change the use of the shop
unit (Class A1) into a restaurant (Class A3). Due to the floor area being below the
threshold it was determined that prior approval was not required for this change of
use.

3.4

Following the prior notification process, the applicant acquired the property however
after initial discussions it soon became apparent that the proposed use was more
drink led than food orientated and that a change of use to a drinking establishment
(Class A4) would be required.

4. PROPOSAL
4.1

As the change of use from retail (Class A1) to restaurant (Class A3) has never been
implemented under the prior approval regime the current proposal is to change the
use of the ground floor unit which formerly operated as an office license (Class A1)
into a drinking establishment (Class A4).

5. REPRESENTATIONS
5.1

Two representations have been received in relation to this proposal. One is from a
nearby business who is concerned to ensure that the new use does not impact
detrimentally on their business during office hours. The other is an objection which
raises the concerns in relation to the retrospective nature of the proposal as fitting out
of the unit has been ongoing since the prior approval was originally granted.
However, as this work was an internal fit out planning permission is not required for
this. The replacement of the shopfront does however require planning permission and
a separate application has been submitted to regularise this element.

6. CONSULTATION REPLIES

Page 26

6.1

Designing Out Crime Officer - Lancashire Constabulary – A number of
recommendations have been made in relation to security measures relating to the
physical security of the building and these have been forwarded onto the applicant.

6.2

Environmental Health – Subject to the imposition of a number of conditions it is
considered that the use will not unduly impact on the amenities of the locality. The
proposed conditions relate to opening hours, noise insulation, entertainment and use
of outdoor areas as well as servicing and storage arrangements.

6.3

LCC Highways – Raise no objections to the application and are of the opinion that
the proposals should have a negligible impact on highway safety and highway
capacity within the vicinity of the site.

7. MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
7.1

NPPF

7.1.1

The National Planning Policy Framework advocates a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. Core Principle 2 – Ensuring the Vitality of town centres
(paragraph 23), Core Principle 7 – Requiring Good Design (paragraphs 56 – 58) and
Core Principle 8 – Promoting healthy communities (paragraphs 69 & 70) are relevant
to the consideration of this application.

7.1.2

Paragraph 23 states planning policies should be positive, promote competitive town
centre environments and set out policies for the management and growth of centres.
Local Planning authorities should recognise town centres as the heart of their
communities and pursue policies to support their viability and vitality; define a network
and hierarchy of centres that is resilient to anticipated future economic changes;
define the extent of town centres and primary shopping areas, based on a clear
definition of primary and secondary frontages in designated centres, and set policies
that make clear which uses will be permitted in such locations; promote competitive
town centres that provide customer choice and a diverse retail offer and which reflect
the individuality of town centres.

7.1.3

Paragraphs 56 – 58 state that good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development and should contribute positively to making better places for people. It is
important to plan positively for high quality and inclusive design in all development.
Local and neighbourhood plans should develop robust and comprehensive policies
that set out the quality of development that will be expected for the area.

7.1.4

Planning policies and decisions should aim to ensure that developments: will function
well and add to the overall quality of the area, establish a strong sense of place, using
streetscapes and buildings to create attractive and comfortable places to live, work
and visit; optimise the potential of the site to accommodate development, create and
sustain an appropriate mix of uses and support local facilities, create safe and
accessible environments where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not
undermine quality of life or community cohesion.

7.1.5

Paragraph 69 & 70 identifies the planning system playing an important role in
facilitating social interaction and creating healthy, inclusive communities. Planning
policies and decisions, in turn, should aim to achieve places which promote:
opportunities for meetings between members of the community who might not
otherwise come into contact with each other, including through mixed-use
developments, strong neighbourhood centres and active street frontages which bring
together those who work, live and play in the vicinity; safe and accessible
environments where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine

Page 27

quality of life or community cohesion; and safe and accessible developments that
encourage the active and continual use of public areas.
7.1.6

To deliver the social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community
needs, planning policies and decisions should: plan positively for the provision and
use of shared space, community facilities (such as local shops, meeting places,
sports venues, cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship) and other
local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential
environments; guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services,
particularly where this would reduce the community’s ability to meet its day-to-day
needs; ensure that established shops, facilities and services are able to develop and
modernise in a way that is sustainable, and retained for the benefit of the community.

7.2

Central Lancashire Core Strategy

7.2.1

Policy 11 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy states that retail and other town
centre uses of a scale appropriate to the retail hierarchy and in sustainable locations
will be supported, provided that the development respects the character of the centre
and assists in maintaining its existing retail function. Retail and town centre uses will
be delivered by maintain, improving and controlling the mix of uses in existing district
centres, so as to appropriately serve local needs.

7.2.2

Policy 17 of the Core Strategy sets out design criteria for new buildings. In particular
development should safeguard and enhance the built environment, be sympathetic to
surrounding land uses and occupiers avoiding harm to the amenities of the local area,
minimise opportunity for crime and maximising natural surveillance and make
provision for the needs of special groups in the community such as the elderly and
those with disabilities.

7.2.3

Policy 26 of the Core Strategy addresses crime and community safety by promoting
working with the police, community safety partnerships and other agencies to coordinate analysis and action. Encouraging the inclusion of Secured by Design
principles as well as aiming to achieve a complementary mix use of uses in key
service centres with appropriate controls over entertainment uses, taking account of
the local authorities’ Statement of Licensing policies.

7.3

South Ribble Local Plan 2012 - 2026

7.3.1

Policy B1 of the Local Plan states that within existing built-up areas, proposals for the
re-use of buildings will be permitted provided the development complies with the
requirements for access, parking and services, is in keeping with the character and
appearance of the area and will not adversely impact the amenities of nearby
residents.

7.3.2

Policy G17 of the Local Plan sets out design parameters that new development
should aim to achieve. These include making a positive contribution to the street
scene, not impacting prejudicially on highway and pedestrian safety, being
sympathetic to surrounding land uses and occupiers, avoiding demonstrable harm to
the amenities of the local area, minimising opportunities for crime and maximising
natural surveillance, making provision for the needs of all sections of the community
such as the elderly and those with disabilities.

7.4

Amenity

7.4.1

The proposal seeks consent to open the premises between 16.00 and 0.00 hours
Monday to Friday 12.00 to 00.00 hours on a Saturday and 12.00 to 23.00 hours on
Sundays. Within the vicinity there are already several other venues operating similar

Page 28

hours. Having raised the issue with the applicant in relation to drinking up time he is
comfortable with the hours suggested in the conditions which are more stringent than
originally applied for and these will be replicated in the licensing application so that
any planning permission or license granted is consistent with the other.
7.4.2

The premises are located on Liverpool Road in a B1 – Built–up area. There are a
number of commercial premises in the vicinity including several late night uses such
as the Red Lion and Golden Ball public houses and a couple of hot food takeaways.
Whilst, the site is not located within a defined local centre as such Liverpool Road in
this location is predominantly commercial in character and the locality clearly
functions as a centre of activity both during the day and in the evening.

7.4.3

The issue of an outdoor smoking area has been raised with the applicant as the
submitted proposals do not indicate what provision is intended to be made to
accommodate patrons who may wish to smoke. The applicant has indicated that
given the scale of the operation and its location on a corner site it is not practicable to
provide a smoking shelter and officers concur with this view.

7.4.4

The issue of an outdoor drinking area has also been raised with the applicant and
given the location of the premises it is considered that a condition should be imposed
to prevent any outdoor seating area given the proximity to residential properties and
the potential such activity has to cause disturbance to nearby neighbours.

7.4.5

With regards to entertainment, the applicant has indicated that primary use of the
premises will be as a sports bar. The applicant currently operates the Golden Ball
public House which is located a couple of hundred metres further along Liverpool
Road and is predominantly a food led operation. He is therefore looking to provide a
different offer in the locality to cater for a market which he is unable to accommodate
within the existing premises. It is his intention that customers will be able to have
conversations on the premises and the primary role of the premises will be to attract
customers to watch sports on television. The size of the premises mean that numbers
watching at the premises will be limited and the applicant will operate a community
based establishment within reasonable time constraints having due consideration to
local residents. This can be controlled by the imposition of appropriate planning
conditions as well as through licensing.

7.4.6

Clearly, the impact on the amenities of surrounding neighbours and the locality is an
important consideration in such cases and often it is how the premises are managed
rather than the actual use itself, which can cause problems. There is a fine balance to
be struck between supporting new local businesses and protecting the amenities of
existing residents. Given the proposed hours of operation and how the applicant
envisages operating it is not considered that the use of the premises given their size
will have any significant detrimental impact on the amenities of local residents
provided appropriate conditions are imposed and these are adhered to by the
applicant. The applicant has shown a willingness to engage and is agreeable to the
recommended conditions being attached to any planning permission granted. It is
considered that this will allow the premises to operate in the manner the applicant
envisages without any detrimental impact to others in the locality.

7.5

Highways

7.5.1

There are no concerns in relation to highway safety raised by the highway authority
and no issues have been raised in relation to car parking provision. There is existing
car parking provision at the side of the premises and this will remain, although it is not
anticipated that the premises will generate significant amounts of vehicle movements
given its proposed hours of operation and the nature of the use.

Page 29

7.6

Servicing

7.6.1

No deliveries or collections to the premises will take place outside normal working
hours. Storage of crates, barrels and bottles will be in a secure, contained area at the
premises details of which will be conditioned to safeguard amenities. The issue of
waste disposal has been raised with the applicant who will make arrangement
appropriate arrangements for the safe disposal of commercial waste. Details of this
can be agreed via condition prior to occupation.

7.7

Crime and Security

7.7.1

Whilst, a number of recommendations have been made by Lancashire Constabulary
in relation to the physical security of the premises the implementation of these is not
something that the Local Planning Authority can control through the imposition of
conditions as they involve fitting internal security systems. Any conditions imposed on
a planning permission need to satisfy the six tests laid out in paragraph 206 of the
NPPF which are necessity, relevant to planning and to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.

7.7.2

As stated above the security recommendations have been forwarded to the applicant
and an informative drawing the applicant’s attention to them can be attached to any
subsequent planning permission granted.

8. CONCLUSIONS
8.1

Having regard to the location of the premises in a built-up area albeit predominantly
commercial in this locality and all material considerations it is considered that the
change of use of the ground floor of the premises from an off license (Class A1) to a
Drinking Establishment (Class A4) is appropriate. Conditions are recommended to
ensure that the amenities of the neighbourhood are protected and provided these are
adhered too, then it is considered that the proposal will positively contribute to the
offer in the locality.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval with Conditions.
RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS:
1.

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this permission.
REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

2.

The development, hereby permitted, shall be carried out in accordance with the
submitted approved plans Dwg P9D/P/10/17/21
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
development

3.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a scheme showing the
provisions to be made for external lighting, CCTV coverage, access control, and any
other measures to reduce the risk of crime, have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until
the approved scheme has been implemented. Thereafter the approved measures
shall be permanently retained unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Page 30

Reason: In order to provide a good standard of security to future occupants and
visitors to the site and to reduce the risk of crime in accordance with Policy 17 and 26
of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Central Lancashire Design Guide
Supplementary Planning Document (Adopted October 2012).
4.

The premises hereby approved, shall not be open to customers outside the hours of
1100 hrs to 2300 hrs Monday to Friday, 1100 to Midnight Saturday and 1200 hrs to
2230 hrs on Sunday, Bank or Public Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of nearby residential properties in
accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy

5.

The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use until details of
facilities for the storage of refuse and waste materials have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority and completed entirely in accordance with
the approved scheme. The approved facility shall be retained thereafter unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
REASON: To safeguard the character and visual appearance of the area and to
safeguard the living conditions of any nearby residents particularly with regard to
odours and/or disturbance in accordance with Policy 27 in the Central Lancashire
Core Strategy and Policy G17 in the South Ribble Local Plan 2012-2026

6.

There shall be no external speakers, floodlighting or patio heaters installed in the
outside area without prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the nearby residents in accordance with
Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core Strategy.

7.

Prior to the installation of any external fixed mechanical plant, equipment, air
conditioning units and/or condenser units or extraction systems being installed on the
premises, full details of the siting and noise levels to be experienced at the nearest
properties and the fixings to be used shall be provided to the local planning authority
for written approval. The approved system shall then be installed as agreed and
thereafter maintained as approved. Any changes to the system shall first be agreed
with the local planning authority in writing.
REASON: To safeguard the living conditions of nearby residents particularly with
regard to the effects of noise in accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire
Core Strategy

8.

All external doors shall be fitted with self-closers and rear doors and windows shall
remain closed throughout the opening times of the premises (except for
emergencies). External use shall be restricted to the hours 11:00 to 22:00 Monday to
Saturday and 12:00 and 21:00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
REASON: To safeguard the amenities of nearby residents particularly with regard to
the effect of noise in accordance with Policy 17 in the Central Lancashire Core
Strategy

9.

There shall be no live or recorded entertainment music played at the property.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the nearby residents in accordance with
Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy

Page 31

10.

Times of deliveries shall be restricted to between 09:00hrs and 17:00 hrs.
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and highway safety and to be in
accordance with
Policy G17 in the South Ribble Local Plan 2012-2026

11.

There shall be no waste collection including empty bottles between the hours of
19:00hrs and 08:00hrs Monday to Friday.
No waste collection on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank Holidays.
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of nearby residents in accordance with
Policy 17 of the
Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Policy G17 in the South Ribble Local Plan
2012-2026

12.

No external seating or tables shall be provided without the prior written approval of
the Council as Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties in accordance with
Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy

13.

Prior to first use of the development a sound insulation level of 60 dB Rw shall be
provide to all party walls and ceilings. To ensure that this level of attenuation is
achieved an assessment must be undertaken, by a qualified acoustician, and a
written report produced and submitted to the local planning authority for approval.
Upon completion of any attenuation work a follow up assessment must be undertaken
to ensure that 60 dB Rw has been achieved, written details of this assessment must
be submitted and approved by the local planning authority
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties in accordance with
Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and the NPPF.

14.

Prior to first use of the premises a sound limiter device shall be fitted. Details of the
device shall be submitted to the local planning authority, once agreed all amplified
audio shall be played through the limiter. The limiter shall be set to ensure that the
resulting sound cannot be heard at neighbouring properties. On the receipt of any
complaints to the local authority relating to sound emissions from the development
then the limiter shall be set to the requirements of the Environmental Health
Department of the local authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring properties in accordance with
Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and the NPPF.

15.

Prior to the occupation of the development full details of the waste storage facilities
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
waste storage area shall provide effective and sufficient storage facilities for refuse
and to safeguard amenities and living conditions of any nearby residents particularly
with regards to odour, noise and insects.
Access to the bin store shall only be used between the hours of 0800 hours to 2200
Monday to Saturday and 0900 to 2100 hours Sunday and Bank Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the nearby residents in accordance with
Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Policy B1 in the South Ribble
Local Plan.

Page 32

RELEVANT POLICY
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
11

Retail and Town Centre Uses and Business Based Tourism
Policy)

17

Design of New Buildings (Core Strategy Policy)

26

Crime and Community Safety (Core Strategy Policy)

POLB1

Existing Built-Up Areas

POLG17

Design Criteria for New Development

Note:

Page 33

(Core Strategy

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Application Number

07/2018/2471/HOH

Address

51 Green Hey
Much Hoole
Preston
Lancashire
PR4 4QH

Applicant

Mr Mark Hodges

Agent
Mr Harry Fowler
323 Gregson Lane
Hoghton
Preston
PFR5 0FD
Development

Two storey and single storey rear extensions,
porch and single storey extension to front
elevation. Replacement detached garage to front
and erection of detached outbuilding to form a
garden room to rear. Erection of a 2.4m (max)
high boundary fence to north western boundary

Officer Recommendation
Officer Name

Approval with Conditions
Jessica Jarman

Date application valid
Target Determination Date
Extension of Time

19.04.2018
14.06.2018
22.06.2018

1

Page 35

1. Introduction
1.1. The application is being presented to Committee because the Applicant is an
employee of South Ribble Borough Council
2. Report Summary
2.1. The proposal within the village of Much Hoole a wholly residential area designated
under Policy B1 (Existing Built up Area) of the South Ribble Local Plan.
2.2. The residential property is located on Green Hey. To the North West the site borders
the A59 Liverpool Road. To the south are residential properties situated along
Liverpool Old Road
3. Site and Surrounding Area
3.1. The Application property is a detached dwelling located within the residential area of
Much Hoole.
3.2. To the north of the application site lies the A59 Liverpool Road beyond this is
agricultural fields. To the east and south are residential properties.
3.3. The site is within land designated as Policy B1 Existing Built Up Area.
4. Planning History
4.1. Planning Permission was granted in 1991 for Alterations to Roof and Two Storey
Side Extension (07/1991/0125).
4.2. Planning permission was granted in 1978 for a Consulting Room, toilet facilities and
retiring room with bedroom, bathroom and toilet facilities upstairs (07/1978/0597).
4.3. Planning permission was refused in 1976 for a Conversion of existing bungalow into
Doctors surgery, waiting room etc (07/1976/0383).
4.4. Planning permission was refused in 1976 for 1 in no. detached dwelling (O.A.)
(07/1976/0217)
5. Proposal
5.1. Planning permission is sought for the following:
5.2. The works proposed along the front elevation are a porch and a bay window which
would have a rendered finish with cream colour. All windows to the front of the
dwelling would have a new stone heads/cills. The proposed bay window would
measure 3.78m x 1.2m by a height of 3.7m. The proposed porch would measure
3.78m x 2.9m by a height of 3.7m. The porch front door and frame would be stained
hardwood.
5.3. A two storey rear extension situated south west of the dwelling. The extension
would measure 4.2m x 4.77m by a height of 5.22m to the eaves and a maximum
height of 7.05m. The use of the extension would be for a ground floor playroom and
to extend an existing bedroom. The extension would be constructed from facing
brickwork, black concrete roof tiles to match existing. An aluminium Bi-folding door

2

Page 36

in dark oak would be included. The other windows and doors would be constructed
from uPVC in dark out.
5.4. A single storey rear extension situated south east of the dwelling. The extension
would measure 8.9m x 4.77m by a height of 2.46m to the eaves and a maximum
height of 3.83m. The use of the extension would be for a lobby and sunroom. The
extension would be constructed from facing brickwork and black concrete roof tiles to
match existing. An aluminium Bi-folding door in dark oak would be included. The
other windows and doors would be constructed from uPVC in dark out.
5.5. The replacement of the detached garage. The proposed garage would be situated
at the front of the property in the north east corner of the site. The garage would
measure 6.94m x 6.42m by a height of 2.4m to the eaves and a maximum height of
3.96m. Following representations received a revised plan has been submitted to
change the roof from a pitched roof to a hipped roof. The garage would be
constructed by facing brickwork and black concrete roof tiles to match existing
works.
5.6. Proposed garden room would be situated in the rear garden in the south western
corner and would measure 6m x 4m to a height of 2.5m to the eaves and a
maximum height of 4m. The garden room would be constructed by facing brickwork
and black concrete roof tiles with a bi-folding doors.
5.7. A timber fence would be constructed along the western boundary adjacent to
Liverpool Road (A59). The fence would measure 1.8m (6ft) from the closest point to
Green Hey for 6m in length after this point the fence would raise to 2.4m (8ft.).
5.8. Amended Plans requested by Officers to address concerns relating to overlooking
from the window Juliette balcony on the two storey extension and the pitched roof on
the proposed garage. To summarise, the amendments were as follows:
 Resubmitted plans to show correct scale
 Room name correction
 Added Porch posts on to the Proposed Floor Plan
 Relocated the Juliette balcony on first floor of the two storey extension from the
side elevation facing Liverpool Old Road to the rear of the property
 Proposed garage roof changed from pitched to hipped
 Car parking spaces shown on the Proposed Floor Plan
6. Representations
6.1. The application is accompanied by the following:
6.2. Nine neighbouring properties have been notified.
6.3. Letters of objection
6.3.1. Four letters of objections have been received stating the following:
 Outlook will become unacceptably closed
Extensions
 Proximity from the extensions to the neighbouring boundary
 The outlook of the brick wall facing the neighbouring properties
 Concerned for privacy as a result of the two storey extension window on the first
floor
 Loss of light

3

Page 37

Proposed Garage
 The height of the proposed garage and proximity to the neighbouring boundary
 Loss of light
 The scale of the garage on the plans are incorrect
Porch
 Height and length of the porch along with the garage would be overbearing and
create loss of light
6.4. Following submission of a further amendment to plans neighbours were re-notified
and any further comments received will be reported on the Committee update sheet.
6.5. Letters of Support
6.5.1. No representations of support have been received.
6.6. Town/Parish Council Response
6.6.1. N/A
6.7. Summary of Responses
6.7.1. Lancashire County Council Highways has no objection.
7. Material Considerations
7.1. Site Allocation
7.2. The site is designated under Policies B1 (Existing Built Up Area) of the South Ribble
Local Plan 2012-2026.
7.3. Policy B1 allows for redevelopment in allocated areas provided that proposals would
comply with requirements of the local plan relating to access, parking and servicing;
would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the area, and would not
adversely affect the amenity of nearby residents.
7.4. Policy Background
Additional policy of marked relevance to this proposal is as follows:
7.4.1. National Planning Policy Framework
7.4.2. The NPPF at Para 14: provides a presumption in favour of sustainable
development ‘which should be seen as a golden thread running through both
plan-making and decision taking’, and supports sustainable economic growth to
deliver, amongst other things, homes. Given the sites location it is the Officer’s
view that the site is especially sustainable and that the development accords
with the overall principles of the NPPF; in particular:
7.4.3. Chapter 7: Requiring good design attaches great importance to the design
of the built environment which contributes positively to making better places for
people.
7.4.4. Central Lancashire Core Strategy

4

Page 38

7.4.4.1.
The Core Strategy was adopted at full Council on 18th July 2012, and
is therefore a material consideration in the determination of this planning
application.
7.4.4.2.
Policy 17: Design of New Buildings requires new development to
take account of the character and appearance of the local area.
7.4.5. South Ribble Local Plan
7.4.5.1.
In addition to site allocation policies B1 and the following are also
pertinent:
7.4.5.2.
Policy F1: Parking Standards requires all development proposals to
provide car parking and servicing space in accordance with parking
standards adopted by the Council.
7.4.5.3.
Policy G17: Design Criteria for New Development considers design
in general terms, and impact of the development upon highways safety, the
extended locale and the natural environment.
7.5. South Ribble Residential Design SPD discusses design in very specific terms, and
whilst more attuned to the Reserved Matters application stage, is relevant with
regards to separation with properties beyond the site bounds.
8. Impact of Development on Neighbouring Properties
8.1. Following representations a revised Proposed Floor Plan & Elevations (HF.019.02
Rev. A) has been submitted. As a result the proposed Juliette balcony situated on
the first floor of the two storey extension has been relocated from the side
overlooking Liverpool Old Road to the rear of the property therefore the window with
the Juliette balcony would not overlook the neighbouring properties.
8.2. In addition a revised Existing & Proposed Garage Plan (HF.019.03 Rev A) has been
submitted the proposed garage roof has been altered to a hipped roof.
8.3. The closest residential properties are located on Liverpool Old Road situated along
the southern boundary.
8.4. The proposed single storey extension would have a lower ridge roof line than the
existing dwelling. At the closest point 10m away from the windows of no.190
Liverpool Old Road. There is no windows proposed along the elevation which would
front the neighbouring properties as a result there would not be an unacceptable loss
of privacy. As a result of the representation received the window with the Juliette
balcony situated on the two storey extension has been relocated to the rear of the
property.
8.5. Representations have been received with regards to the loss of sunlight. 51 Green
Hey is situated north of the properties on Liverpool Old Road therefore the proposal
would not affect the loss of daylight as the properties are situated in the south.
8.6. The proposed garage roof has been altered from a pitch to a hip as a result of the
representations received therefore this would reduce the mass of the proposed
garage on the neighbouring residential properties.
8.7. Representations have been received concerned that the scale of the proposed
garage is incorrect on the Site Plans. The plans have been checked and the

5

Page 39

dimensions of the existing and proposed garage is correct. OS Map data is not
updated when dwellings are altered, the data is only updated when new dwellings
are built.
8.8. Whilst it is acknowledged that the works proposed to 51 Green Hey are significant
the proposal would not unduly affect the amenities of the neighbouring properties.
9. Design, Character & Appearance
9.1. Local Plan Policy G17 (Design Criteria for new development) seeks to ensure new
development relates well to neighbouring buildings and the extended locality, that
layout, design and landscaping of all elements of the proposal are of a high quality;
providing interesting visual environments which respect local character, reflect local
distinctiveness, and offer appropriate levels of parking and servicing space in line
with Policy F1 (Parking Standards) of the same document. Core Strategy Policy 17
(Design of New Buildings) effectively mirrors these criteria.
9.2. The works proposed to the front of the property would enhance the frontage and
character of the area. The proposed rear extensions, garage and garden outbuilding
would match the existing and would be inkeeping within the area. The existing
access to the rear of the property would not be affected therefore there is adequate
space for bins to be stored at the rear of the property. The proposal would be
constructed from materials of a similar appearance to the existing dwelling.
Therefore the proposal would have a limited impact upon the character of the area
and is considered to be acceptable.
9.3. In consideration of the above, local distinctiveness and character of the area have
been assessed.
10. Highways Considerations and Parking Arrangements
10.1.

LCC Highways have no objections to the proposal.

10.1.1. Parking
10.1.1.1. The Proposed Site Plan (Ref: HF.019.08 Rev.B) demonstrates that
four car parking spaces can be provided therefore adequate parking is
provided.
11. Conclusion
11.1.
As outlined above the proposal is deemed to be in accord with Policies B1
and G17 of the Adopted Local Plan 2012-2026, the South Ribble Residential
Extensions SPD and Policy 17 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy. Therefore
the application is recommended for approval subject to the imposition of conditions.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval with Conditions.
RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS:

6

Page 40

1.

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this permission.
REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

2.

The development, hereby permitted, shall be carried out in accordance with the
submitted approved plans Drawings:
HF.019.06 Rev.B Location Plan
HF.019.07 Rev.B Existing Site Plan
HF.019.08 Rev.B Proposed Site Plan
HF.019.01 Existing Floor Plan & Elevations
HF.019.02 Rev.A Proposed Floor Plan & Eelvations
HF.019.03 Rev.A Existing & Proposed Garage
HF.019.05 Proposed Boundary Fence Detail
HF.019.04 Proposed Garden Room
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
development

3.

All external facing materials shall match in colour, form and texture to those on the
existing building.
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and so that the Local
Planning Authority shall be satisfied as to the details in accordance with Policy 17 in
the Central Lancashire Core Strategy and Policy G17 in the South Ribble Local Plan
2012-2026

RELEVANT POLICY
17

Design of New Buildings (Core Strategy Policy)

POLB1

Existing Built-Up Areas

POLG17

Design Criteria for New Development

RES

Residential Extensions Supplementary Planning Document

Note:

7

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

